
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
TWENTY-FIFTH SESSION 

OfficUd Records 

Chairman: Mr. Walter GUEVARA ARZE (Bolivia). 

AGENDA ITEM 37 

United Nations Conference on Trade and Development: 
report of the Trade and Development Board (concluded} 
(A/8003/Add.l, chap. I; A/8015, A/C.2/L.1130/Rev.2) 

I. Mr. RUTTEN (Netherlands) said that his delegation 
regretted that it had not been possible to reach complete 
agreement on draft resolution A/C.2/L.l130/Rev.2. It was 
important because it dealt with the preparation of the third 
session of UNCTAD, which should give new emphasis to 
the work of that organization, in particular to its activities 
related to the implementation of the International Develop­
ment Strategy for the Second United Nations Development 
Decade (General Assembly resolution 2626 (XXV)). His 
delegation nevertheless hoped that the constructive spirit 
which had been apparent in the informal negotiations 
would prove a good omen for further preparatory work for 
the third session of the Conference. 

2. If a separate vote was taken on operative paragraph 6, 
his delegation would vote for the paragraph, because it 
agreed that the Trade and Development Board and the third 
session of UNCT AD should, in accordance with para· 
graph 30 of General Assembly resolution 1995 (XIX), 
review the institutional arrangements of UNCT AD with a 
view to recommending such changes and improvements as 
might be necessary. That vote should not be interpreted as 
prejudging his delegation's position regarding the outcome 
of any such review; his delegation would consider the 
questions involved within the framework of Assembly 
resolution 1995 (XIX), and on the basis of further studies 
and discussions. Its vote for the draft resolution as a whole 
should be interpreted in a similar manner. 

3. ·Mr. ALLEN (United Kingdom) said that, although his 
delegation appreciated the efforts of the sponsors to 
accommodate those delegations which had difficulty ac­
cepting certain provisions of the draft resolution, it would 
have to abstain in the vote. His delegation could not accept 
the sponsors' explanation of the intent of operative 
paragraph 4, which appeared to attempt to prescribe the 
agenda for the third session of UNCTAD. Operative 
paragraph 5 was unacceptable, for there was no logical or 
practical connexion between the nature of UNCT AD's 
institutional machinery and the ability of any country to 
accept certain provisions of the International Development 
Strategy for the Second United Nations Development 
Decade, or between the nature of the machinery and the 
extent to which a country contributed to the achievement 
of the objectives of the Decade. 

419 

SECOND COMMITTEE, 1365th 
MEETING 

(Gosing meeting} 

Friday, 11 December 1970, 
at8.50 p.m. 

NEW YORK 

4. He rejected the implication in operative paragraph 6 
that General Assembly resolution 1995 (XIX) required 
amendment; moreover, in accordance with paragraph 32of 
that resolution, as well as decision 45 {VII) of the Trade 
and Development Board, any review of the institutional 
arrangements was in the first instance the task of the Board. 

5. His delegation supported the remaining operative para­
graphs, particularly operative paragraph 2. 

6. Mr. CUBILLOS (Chile), speaking on behalf of the 
sponsors of draft resolution A/C.2/L.ll30/Rev.2, said he 
wished to comment on certain remarks relating thereto. 
Referring to the Japanese representative's objections 
(1364th meeting) to operative paragraph 4 (a}, he said that 
the words "policy measures as agreed upon" should not 
present any difficulty, since the International Development 
Strategy had now been adopted and the words "as agreed 
upon" did not imply a legal commitment. Operative 
paragraphs 4 (b} and (c) were not repetitious, for the 
former summed up work already accomplished and the 
latter sought to open up new areas of agreement. A 
dynamic approach to economic development and trade 
required the adoption of new principles to attain the 
desired goals. 

7. The purpose of operative paragraph 5 was to establish a 
forum for dialogue within UNCTAD to enable the devel· 
oping countries to hold fruitful negotiations with the 
developed countries. There was no other multilateral forum 
for negotiations with the socialist countries. He therefore 
disagreed with the representative of Japan that discussions 
within UNCTAD of new institutional machinery could not 
go beyond the exploratory stage. The Australian represen· 
tative's (ibid.) fear that discussion of institutional machin· 
ery at the third session of UNCT AD would divert the 
Conference from important substantive matters was un· 
founded, for substantial progress had been made on a 
number of specific questions at the first and second sessions 
of the Conference. The United Kingdom representative had 
failed to note the link established in paragraph 6 of decision 
45 (VII) of the Trade and Development Board between the 
terms of reference of UNCT AD and the review of its 
institutional machinery in the light of recent developments 
and long-term trends. Operative paragraph 5 of the draft 
resolution stressed that link by calling for a review of the 
institutional machinery in the context of the International 
Development Strategy. 

8. Operative paragraph 6 of the draft resolution did not, as 
maintained by the representatives of Poland and Japan 
(ibid.), prejudge the proposals which might be made. The 
sponsors interpreted paragraph 32 of General Assembly 
resolution 1995 (XIX) as meaning that the General Assem 

A/C.2/SR.l365 



420 General Assembly - Twenty-fifth Session _.: Second Committee 

bly should take the initiative in requesting changes in 
institutional arrangements; the Trade and Development 
Board and UNCT AD should consider relevant proposals for 
submission in due course to the General Assembly. Specific 
proposals should be made by the Board, not by the Second 
Committee, and operative paragraph 6 made no attempt to 
usurp the Board's role. 

9. Mr. SPENCER (Canada) said that his delegation would 
vote in favour of the draft resolution as a whole as a sign of 
its strong support for the aims and objectives of the third 
session of UNCTAD and because the sponsors had made a 
number of welcome changes. Operative paragraphs 4, 5 and 
6, however, were somewhat superfluous and his delegation 
would abstain if operative paragraphs 5 and 6 were voted 
on separately. He saw no connexion between the need for 
improvements in the institutional machinery of UNCTAD 
and the difficulties which some countries had in accepting 
certain provisions of the International Development Strat­
egy, for those difficulties stemmed from their national 
policies. Operative paragraph 6 prejudged the need for 
fundamental reforms of UNCTAD's structure. Less exten­
sive reforms might be more satisfactory. 

10. Mr. RUIZ MORALES (Spain) said that his delegation 
would vote in favour of the draft resolution as a whole and 
attached particular importance to the eighth preambular 
paragraph. It had some misgivings, however, about opera­
tive paragraph 6. General Assembly resolution 1995 (XIX) 
must be respected, and it was inappropriate for the General 
Assembly to consider changing UNCTAD's machinery at 
the present stage. 

11. Mr. KAHILUOTO (Finland), speaking on behalf of the 
delegations of Denmark, Norway and Sweden as well as his 
own, said that UNCTAD had a vital role to play in 
furthering the goals and objectives of the Second United 
Nations Development Decade in the field of trade and 
development; the third session of UNCTAD should accord­
ingly be carefully prepared. The four delegations would 
therefore vote for the draft resolution as a whole, to 
express their support for the decision to convene the third 
session of UNCTAD and to indicate the positive attitude 
with which they would attend it. 

12. However, they would not be able to support operative 
paragraph 6 if it was put to a separate vote. The question of 
institutional reforms was presented with -a certain lack of 
clarity, and decision 45 (VII) of the Trade and Develop­
ment Board and resolution 1995 (XIX) of the General 
Assembly still formed an adequate basis for the continuous 
review of institutional machinery. More important than 
discussion of institutional changes was the need for the 
same political will which had led to the adoption of the 
International Development Strategy. The Nordic countries 
wished UNCT AD to enter the Second Development Decade 
in an open, realistic and co-operative frame of mind, as an 
opinion-maker within its field of competence and as an 
instrument for carrying out the recommendations of the 
International Development Strategy. 

13. Mr. ZAKHAROV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub­
lics) said his delegation fully shared the views expressed by 
the representative of Poland at the 1364th meeting. The 
draft resolution was in clear contradiction to paragraphs 30 

to 32 of General Assembly resolution 1995 (XIX) dealing 
with future institutional arrangements, and his delegation 
would therefore abstain in the vote. 

14. Mr. KOEHRING (United States of America) said that 
his delegation's comments at the 1364th meeting should be 
taken as its explanation of vote. He requested a separate 
vote on operative paragraph 5. 

15. Mr. ALLEN (United Kingdom) requested a separate 
vote on operative paragraph 6. 

16. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to vote 
separately on operative paragraphs 5 and 6 and then on 
draft resolution A/C.2/L.1130/Rev.2 as a whole. 

Operative paragraph 5 was adopted by 59 votes to 6, with 
13 abstentions. 

At the request of the Brazilian representative, the vote on 
operative paragraph 6 was taken by roll-call. 

The Democratic Republic of the Congo, having been 
drawn by lot by the Chairman, was called upon to vote 
first. 

In favour: Congo (Democratic Republic of), El Salvador, 
Ethiopia, Ghana, Guatemala, Guyana, Honduras, Indonesia, 
Iran, Israel, Jamaica, Kenya, Kuwait, Laos, Liberia, Mada­
gascar, Malaysia, Netherlands, Nigeria, Pakistan, Peru, 
Philippines, Rwanda, Saudi Arabia, Sierra Leone, Singa­
pore, Sudan, Swaziland, Thailand, Trinidad and Tobago, 
Tunisia, Turkey, Uganda, United Arab Republic, United 
Republic of Tanzania, Uruguay, Venezuela, Yemen, Yugo­
slavia, Afghanistan, Algeria, Barbados, Bolivia, Brazil, Came­
roon, Ceylon, Chad, Chile, China, Colombia. 

Against: Cuba, Czechoslovakia, Hungary, Japan, Mon­
golia, Poland, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, Union of 
Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom of Great 
Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of America, 
Bulgaria, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic. 

Abstaining: Denmark, Finland, France, Greece, Ireland, 
Italy, New Zealand, Norway, Portugal, Romania, South 
Africa, Spain, Sweden, Argentina, Australia, Austria, 
Belgium, Canada. 

Operative paragraph 6 was adopted by 50 votes to 12, 
with 18 abstentions. 

At the request of the Chilean representative, the vote on 
the draft resolution as a whole was taken by roll-call. 

Belgium, having been drawn by lot by the Chairman, was 
called upon to vote first. 

In favour: Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil, Cameroon, Canada, 
Ceylon, Chad, Chile, China, Colombia, Congo (Democratic 
Republic of), Denmark, El Salvador, Ethiopia, Finland, 
France, Ghana, Greece, Guatemala, Guyana, Honduras, 
Indonesia, Iran, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Jamaica, Kenya, 
Kuwait Laos, Liberia, Madagascar, Malaysia, Netherlands, 
New Z~aland, Nigeria, Norway, Pakistan, Peru, Philippines, 
Portugal, Romania, Rwanda, Saudi Arabia, Sierra Leone, 



1365th meeting- 11 December 1970 421 

Singapore, South Africa, Spain, Sudan, Swaziland, Sweden, 
Thailand, Trinidad and Tobago, Tunisia, Turkey, Uganda, 
United Arab Republic, United Republic of Tanzania, 
Uruguay, Venezuela, Yemen, Yugoslavia, Afghanistan, 
Algeria, Argentina, Australia, Austria, Barbados. 

Against: None. 

Abstaining: Bulgaria, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist·Repub­
lic, Cuba, Czechoslovakia, Hungary, Japan, Mongolia, 
Poland, Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, Union of 
Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom of Great 
Britain and Northern Ireland, United States of America. 

The draft resolution as a whole was adopted by 68 votes 
to none, with 12 abstentions. 

17. Mr. BRADLEY (Argentina) said that his delegation 
had abstained in the vote on operative paragraphs 5 and 6 
because it found that the wording of the former was 
confused and its final objective was not clear. A change in 
the institutional structure of UNCT AD would not affect 
the views of those delegations which had difficulties in 
accepting certain specific provisions in the policy measures 
of the International Development Strategy. Operative para­
graph 6 made no specific reference to the structural changes 
which the co-sponsors apparently had in mind, but which 
they had never explained. If his delegation had known what 
changes were referred to, it might have been able to support 
the paragraph, but, without instructions from its Govern­
ment, had been unable to accept the form in which the 
paragraph was drafted. His delegation's support for opera­
tive paragraph 4 was conditional on the understanding that 
the activities of the Trade and Development Board referred 

to in subparagraphs (a), (b), (c) and (d) would be 
undertaken within the exclusive competence of UNCTAD. 
His delegation had voted for the draft resolution as a whole 
because of its interest in the success of the third session of 
UNCTAD, and wished to congratulate the sponsors on 
rriaking their draft resolution general in scope . 

18. Mr. GUPTA (India) said that his delegation, as a 
co-sponsor of the draft resolution, would, had it been 
present during the voting, have voted for operative para­
graphs 5 and 6 and for the draft resolution as a whole. 

19. Mr. CARANICAS (Greece) said that his delegation had 
been unable to vote for operative paragraph 6, since it 
found the wording vague and had regretted the absence of a 
specific reference to the type of structural changes which 
were needed. However, it appreciated the efforts of the 
sponsors and, while abstaining on that paragraph, had voted 
for the draft resolution as a whole. 

20. The CHAIRMAN said that, in the absence of any 
objection, he would authorize the Rapporteur to submit his 
report on agenda item 37 direct to the General Assembly. 

It was so agreed. 

Completion of the Committee's work 

21. After the customary exchange of courtesies, the 
CHAIRMAN declared that the Committee had completed 
its work. 

The meeting rose at /0.45 p.m. 



;~I t"'"'SI .:..I;_,:.:.. Js- J_,....JI 4 
4- J-\.;;' _,:JJ <,.::(.JJ (.}" "+:< ~~ • rlWJ •I...; I ~ ,j cJ_,.ll J~>~ .;,t,:s::.JI (.}";~I r'':/1 <:.b.,:-:.. .)o. J_,_JI J...... 

. ~ ,j ~I ~J.J'.,.j ,j ~I !""'' ~I r'':/1 ' Jl ..51 ~~ 

tofiiJ if3J(l~~~~~~flll&~ 

~*l'lillhlili~~:tilt l"'-t.Jta':.l ~J.5fllt:HUJ:~rfi ~!f. illol ~J.5~[DJJ&:!lJ{jfj tl!r.Ji&B ~JUJ';J~fl-0011!Wt11.. 

HOW TO OBTAIN UNITED NATIONS PUBLICATIONS 

United Nations publications may be obtained from bookstores and distributors 
throughout the world. Consult your bookstore or write to: United Nations, Sales 
Section, New York or Geneva. 

COMMENT SE PROCURER LES PUBLICATIONS DES NATIONS UNIES 

Les publications des Nations Unies sont en vente dans les librairies et les agences 
depositaires du mondc entier. Informez-vous aupres de votre libraire ou adressez-vous 
a : Nations Unies, Section des ventes, New York ou Geneve. 

KAK llOJIY'lHTI> H3)1;AHHH OPrAHH3AIJ;HH OB"I>ELJ.HHEHHI>IX HAIJ;HII 

H:l,llaHHH OpraHM3al:lHH OIS'»e.llMHeHHLIX Hauuil: MOH<UO KYDHTb B KUHH<HbiX Mara-
3HHax H areHTCTB8X BO acex pal!oHaX MHpa. HaBO,llHTC cnpaBKH 06 H3):18HHIIX B 
aaUJeM KHH>KHOM Mar8.3HHe HJIH nHUJHTe no al{pecy : OpraHH3BllHH 06'»e.AHHCHHbJX 
Hanull , CeKUH.R no npol{SH<e H3JIBHHH, HbiO-FiopK HJtH >KeHeaa. 

COMO CONSEGUIR PUBLICACIONES DE LAS NACIONES UNIDAS 

Las publicaciones de las Naciones Unidas estan en venta en librerfas y ~asas distri­
buidoras en todas partes del mundo. Consulte a su librero o dirijase a: Naciones 
Unidas, Secci6n de Ventas, Nueva York o Ginebra. 

Litho in United Nations, New York Price : $U.S. 10.00 (or equivalent in other currencies) 77201-May 1974-1,925 




